
34 Forbes Street, COURTHOUSE ANNEX, COMMISSION
MEETING ROOM

The Board of County Commissioners asks that all cell phones are turned off or placed on
silent (vibrate) mode. Any handouts (information) for distribution to the
Commission must be submitted to the Board Secretary (Clerk’s Office) or to
the County Coordinator on or before the Thursday prior to that Tuesday’s
meeting. Failure to do so will result in your removal from the agenda or a
delay of any action relating to your request until a future meeting.

Meeting Information
Effective May 4, 2021, the general public will be allowed in the commission meeting
room for regular meetings. The Board of County Commissioners encourages the public
to continue the use of the livestream link or Zoom. Those wanting to view the meeting
can use the livestream link https://facebook.com/forgottencoasttv/ or go to Forgotten
Coast TV's Facebook Page. You do not need a Facebook account to view Facebook live.
The livestream feed will promptly start 5 minutes before the meeting commences.
Those wanting to participate virtually during the meeting should use the Zoom log-
in/call-in information provided below. There is a link to a list of videos and Getting
Started Resources on the main "Agenda and Minutes" webpage for those unfamiliar with
Zoom. If you are experiencing any issues with the livestream or Zoom, call (850) 653-
9783 option 3 or 2 for assistance. 
To join Zoom via computer, use the link https://zoom.us/j/95061539093 on the meeting
date and time. If you do not have speakers or a microphone on your computer or prefer
to call, you can dial in for audio. Call (301) 715-8592 or (312) 626- 6799 or (929) 205-
6099 and enter ID number (950 6153 9093#). All attendees are muted by default.
If you would like to speak during the meeting in-person or via Zoom, you are
required to complete the virtual speaker card
(https://www.franklincountyflorida.com/virtual-speaker-card/). This card must
be submitted to the County Commission Administrative Office prior to the
start of the meeting in order for you to speak during the meeting. 

Board of County Commissioners - Regular Meeting
Tuesday, August 24, 2021 at 9:00 am

Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1Page 1

https://facebook.com/forgottencoasttv/
https://zoom.us/j/95061539093


During "Public Comments" you may comment on a non-agenda item or a non-action
item for up to 3-minutes when recognized by the Chairman.
You may also address the Commission on an agenda action item for one minute (which
may change based on the number of speakers waiting to comment) during the meeting
after a motion has been seconded and you are recognized by the Chairman.
Once recognized by the Chairman, if you are on Zoom with a computer or smart device
select the 'raise hand' icon. If you have dialed in to the meeting by phone press *9 to
raise your hand, then *6 to unmute.
Public engagement is important to us and use of Zoom for public participation is still a
new process. We appreciate your understanding.

1. Call to Order
2. Prayer and Pledge
3. Payment of County Bills

Board action to ratify the Chairman approval of the payment of the County's
bills on August 17, 2021 during the Local State of Emergency.

4. Public Comments
This is an opportunity for the public to comment on a non-agenda or non-action agenda
item. When you are recognized to be heard by the Chairman, please adhere to the 3-
minute time limit.

Constitutional Officers

5. Clerk of Courts – Michele Maxwell – Report
6. Sheriff – A. J. Smith – Presentation

Department Directors Reports

7. Superintendent of Roads and Bridges – Howard Nabors
Informational Items:
a. Detail of Work Performed and Material Hauled by District (Agenda Packet)

8. Solid Waste Director – Fonda Davis
Informational Items:
a. Right-Of-Way Debris Pickup/Recycle Material Hauled (Agenda Packet)

9. Emergency Management Director – Pam Brownell
Action Item: 
a. Request the Board retroact the Chairman’s Signature on the LSE Dated 08/12/21 for
Tropical Depression Fred.
Informational Items:
b. EOC Staff worked Tropical Depression Fred.
c. EOC staff attended the FEPA Mid-year Training and workshop in Crystal River from

Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2Page 2



08/01/2021-08/06/2021
d. EOC staff continue to update plans and contracts for Franklin County.
e. 08/12/21 EOC Staff completed the Desktop Review with FDEM for EMPA, EMPG, &
EMPG-S grants.
f. 08/13/21 Regional Hospital, EM, and CHD Coordination Call.
g. 08/12/21 EOC Staff completed IPAWS Required monthly testing.
h. 08/14/21-08/15/21 and 08/21/21-08/22/21 EOC offered a CERT (Community
Emergency Response Team) Training here at the EOC.
i. EOC Staff continue to update our Kiosk located throughout Franklin County with COVID
Information along with Preparedness information for the storm.
KIOSK LOCATIONS:
Carrabelle – Franklin County Courthouse Carrabelle Annex
Carrabelle Chamber of Commerce
Eastpoint – Carquest
Apalachicola – Franklin County Emergency Management
Apalachicola Chamber of Commerce
Apalachicola Post Office

10. Extension Office Director – Erik Lovestrand
Informational Items:
General Extension Activities:
a. During this period, the Extension office assisted citizens on topics of ficus disease,
ants swarming, invasive weeds, spider mite treatment options, and more.
b. Extension Director participated in a webinar training about the invasive carrotwood
tree.
c. Extension Director assisted with the Apalachicola NERR’s 5-year evaluation process.
d. Extension Director participated in two days of promotion/permanent status
workshops to evaluate District Extension faculty who are submitting a promotion packet
this year.
Sea Grant Extension:
e. Extension Director working with State Shellfish Specialist and other faculty to host an
in-service training for county extension faculty on the topic of the off-bottom oyster
aquaculture industry.
4-H Youth Development:
f. Extension Director met with District III 4-H Agents to plan for coming year and to
prepare for the upcoming North Florida Fair.
Family and Consumer Sciences:
g. Family Nutrition Program assistant continues providing nutrition programing in local
schools and is assisting with training activities for the newly hired Gulf County FNP staff.
Agriculture/Home Horticulture:
h. Franklin County Master Gardeners are meeting monthly now and hosting weekly plant
clinics at the Extension office on Wednesdays from 10-noon to answer questions for
walk-in visitors on gardening and home horticulture issues. Plant clinics are also being

Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3Page 3



scheduled for local libraries.

11. Building Official – Steve Paterson
Mr. Paterson will update the Board on Private Inspector fees and the consolidation of
Supplemental Permit fees.

Other Reports

12. Interim Airport Manager – Ted Mosteller
(Updated Notes in Italics.)
Note: My apologies—‘Tropical Storm Fred’ contributed to the excessive length and
tardiness of this report.

a) FYI: Our Airport Manager committee has been meeting and Erin has a report for you..

b) FYI: Concerning the Obstruction Clearance Project (Tree/Vegetation eradication)—
which I deem high priority—because of deficiencies listed from the last Airport Licensing
Inspection—and also deemed a safety issue. As I had reported some weeks back--I had
consulted with several contractors (Loggers/Mulchers/Chippers, etc.) who led me to
believe that $150,000 would be an adequate amount—however after recently
consulting with John Collins, he informs me that to do the job adequately, that the figure
could be up to $5,000 per acre. Concerned--I then consulted with Quinton Williams
(FDOT) to consider more funding. He/we decided on $450,000—which even may not be
adequate—however we should be able to get most of it done—especially the priority
deficiencies cited in the airport inspection. The density and type of vegetation of each
acre will determine that cost per acre—some will just need mulching while other areas
will require logging and bulldozer/excavator. I called John to re-arrange the funds in the
grant—to request of FDOT the re-arrangement. I am informed that the grant total is for
$1,550,000 and is purposed for drainage. As we have already re-purposed--$1,300,000
for drainage, $150,000 for obstruction clearance and $100,000 for the generator.
The revised re-purpose would be $1,000,000 for the drainage, $450,000 for
obstruction clearance and $100,000 for the generator. I’m led to believe--this
re-purposing should be more than adequate for the immediate drainage issue
on the West Ramp.
Note: I also understand there is another large grant in next years FDOT
program for drainage. 
Note: Next years FDOT program includes $600,000 for drainage and $800,000
for pavement rehabilitation.
In consulting with contractors—I had asked for complete clearing—to the condition that
it could be bush hogged/mowed—however the stumps would be cut to the ground level
and left in place—knowing that sometime in the future—they would rot and the holes
would have to be filled in. I have reconsidered and John has agreed that the stumps
should be removed now. Probably the best way is to push the trees over—stump and all

Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4Page 4



—then saw up, mulch or chip and completely remove the debris from the airport. One
contractor I consulted would chip and salvage the product and manufacture pellets for
fuel to power a power plant, etc. John informed me that mulching in place and leaving
the product on the airport is not advisable.
Request to proceed with an RFP for Obstruction clearance.

c) FYI: John informs that funding in the fuel farm is tight—that while the mo-gas will be
part of the self-serve credit card reader, etc. that there are not adequate funds for the
mo-gas tank and associated dispenser nozzle and reel/hose system—which will be a
third fuel choice. While space will be made available—and mo-gas equipment can be
added later—it would be prudent to include this equipment during the construction of
the new fuel farm.
Note: Currently, owners of aircraft that require mo-gas have to carry fuel onto the
airport in cans from the local gas station that sells it. Mo-gas refers to motor gas, slang
for gasoline used by aviators to distinguish from avgas (aviation gasoline)--the premium
no lead/no ethanol gas (white gas) that some gas stations sell for your boat/small
engine and vehicles that require it, etc.

d) John is here to update you on Projects and answer your questions.

e) FYI: The roof repairs done to the FBO hanger/office done on 08/02/21 did stop the
leak into the FBO front office as I reported the FBO reported last meeting—however a
subsequent rain proved that we still have a problem—the roofer missed at least two
other leaks. More repairs were done Monday 8/9/21. The next rain should reveal if they
were successful.
Note: Hold the Press--Thursday afternoon--we just had a rain storm and the FBO reports
no leaks—also no leaks from the storm.

f) FYI: Sewer lift station: Arrangements have finally been made with Johnny Varner
Plumbing for a pumper/tanker truck and repair/replacement of the sewage lift pump—
scheduled for Thursday 8/12/21—will report the results Tuesday.
I am happy to report that the pump has finally been replaced and working on
an extension cord plugged into the EOC—as of noon Thursday. The breaker in
the hangar appears to be defective. Randall Terry reports that he is unable to
reset. I have already replaced the GFCI—a second time. The line checks not
shorted. 
I have called Mike Cates to arrange repair of the electric—scheduled for
tomorrow—Friday.
Note: The replacement pump is a 1 hp grinder pump. Cates Electric replaced the
defective breaker located in the Randy Randolph hanger and the station is now working.
There are a few follow-up details yet to be resolved/addressed (vent stack and cover

Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5Page 5



broken).
Thursday (8/19/21) morning--I found the new pump not working. The breaker was
blown. Johnny pulled the pump and found some sort of cloth material entangled in the
grinder impeller—stalling the motor—thus overloading and blowing the breaker. After
un-tangling the impeller—Johnny re-installed the pump—and all is well again with the
pump.
Note: Now that the 60 x 60 hanger pump is working—the next pump in line has been
found (8/15/21) to not be working—which feeds direct to the city. The Randall Terry
hanger also feeds this station in a “Y” configuration. This is a larger 240 volt grinder
pump. Johnny Varner Plumbing made arrangements for the (Collins) pumper truck and
has scheduled for Thursday August 19th to replace the pump—this was successfully
accomplished.
Now--Concerning the electrical—while currently barely working--is in a deplorable
unsafe condition. I have arranged with Mike Cates Electric for replacement of the rusted
out disconnect box—and electrical up-grading.
This electrical service also feeds the entrance electric gate to the EOC.
This electric service is not on the generator circuit—thus Monday during the storm and
the Duke Energy electrical outage—the gate was inoperable--therefore I’m looking into
re-arranging the electrical to feed this system also from the EOC generator circuit—
which has abundant capacity.
Note: During the storm when the 3-phase commercial power was single phasing and
was eventually out completely—the EOC generator failed. That’s when Jennifer called
me. I reset the generator control panel (over crank cut-out alarm) and after several
attempts--started the generator manually. The generator successfully ran for the
remainder of the 8 to 9 hour power outage and automatically shut off when the
commercial power was restored. The generator started normally on Thursday (8/19/21).
Ring Power is checking into this situation.
Note: During the storm—I discovered that the roof over the EOC electrical service main
panel is leaking (pouring in) onto the panel--again—not good. This has been an ongoing
problem over the years--the roof around the stack has been patched numerous times
The electrical service vault equipment is located in the old generator building—with a
thru-the-roof stack--and is in unsafe/deplorable condition. I was leery about touching
any of the electrical equipment (main breaker/distribution panel/generator transfer
switch/battery charger/ice machine/washer/dryers and miscellaneous
receptacles/switches, etc.) in the room. Everything was wet—part of the ceiling is
collapsing. Also contributing to the situation was the door had blown open.
On Thursday afternoon (8/19/21) I asked Mike for suggestions on updating and making
the equipment safe. He was to consult with Duke Energy Engineering. As of this report--
Thursday evening—I haven’t heard back from Mike yet—however his initial suggestion
is to update--replace the old CT (current transformer) type 400 Amp service installed by
NOAA in the 70’s/80’s ?, with a new modern standard weather tight meter box on the
outside of the building and a new 400 Amp main breaker service panel thru-the-wall on
the inside. Of course the flat roof will have to be repaired (cover the stack hole, etc.).

Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6Page 6



Request to proceed with this emergency up-date/repair of the EOC electrical
service and roof repair.

g) FYI: vault generator: As of Tuesday 8/10/21 Ring Power is still waiting on parts
delivery for the generator. Matt Taylor informs that they will schedule repair of the
control panel as soon as the parts come in.
In the meantime—as of Thursday--I can still manually start and run the generator
without having to prime the injector pump. I also showed Jay how—in case of an
emergency and I’m not immediately available.
Note: During the commercial power outage Monday (8/16/21)—after I was able to
stabilize the EOC electrical--I proceeded to manually crank and run the vault generator
until the power was restored. The power was out for some 8 to 9 hours during the storm
—T S Fred. (This was the longest of some three power outages in the last two and one-
half months.)
Update Note: Clint (Ring Power technician) informed me Thursday (8/19/21) that he is
scheduling repair of the generator control panel and servicing for next week--mid week.

h) The FBO (Jay) reports that the 20’ Bat-Wing mower needs repair and should be
replaced. I consulted with Matt Cobb (John Deere—Ag-pro) and for budgetary pricing the
cost would be approximately up to $27,000.
Matt informed me that Ag-pro may have one in stock in Valdosta. 
It would be purchased on the state bid contract.
Request to proceed with the purchase of a new 20’ Bat-Wing mower implement.
Note: Erin reports that there are funds in the airport account to cover this purchase.
You can almost see the grass growing. I suggest that after/if the new mower is
purchased that the old worn-out mower be refurbished for a spare.
FYI: Jay also reports that the older standby tractor (JD 5520) needs work—that it has
very little power.—I will add it to the list.

i) FYI: To reiterate: Some issues currently listed:
Airport Manager Duties, etc report. Update.
Flight Obstruction Clearance.
Fuel Farm, Mogas, etc.
EOC
Prospective list in excess of 12 waiting for T hangars.
Prospective tenant for a box hangar.
Review of leases—(FDOT) including revenue flow and use of facilities.
Equipment inventory (including repair and maintenance) (JD 5520)
Shelter for airport equipment. 
Building maintenance--Leaking roofs, etc.--Electric service for T hangars
Flight operations counter
NDB

Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7Page 7



Security Plan
Master Plan
Apron rehabilitation
FBO hangar ventilation ceiling fans
FBO hangar floor (original WWII)

13. AVCON – John Collins
Mr. Collins will update the Board on current Airport grants and other Airport matters.

14. CDBG Administrator – Deborah Belcher
Action Item:
a. The County may apply again for CDBG Disaster Recovery funding for Hurricane
Michael in Round 2 of the General Infrastructure program component. Applications are
due to DEO September 17, 2021. In Round 1, the County submitted an application for
beach/dune restoration on Saint George Island. It is not likely that the application would
be approved in Round 2 due to the fact that the project is not one that primarily benefits
low/moderate income people. However, I am willing to do the work again if the Board so
directs. We could now claim 5 points for leveraging federal funds, if we count the
County’s contract with MRD to do the Saint George Island study/design. The Board
must decide whether or not to pursue the application. Another public hearing on
the grant application will be required prior to the application submission.

Informational Items:
b. On July 1, 2021, DEO issued the Administrative Closeout letter to the County for the
Eastpoint Wildfire CDBG project. The County will now be eligible to apply for Small Cities
CDBG funds in the next application cycle. The cycle has not been announced.
c. I am starting the process of “semi-retiring”. That means I will not be doing any more
housing grants or other new projects that will take a lot of my time or require much
travel.

Planning and Zoning Adjustment Report

15. Variance Requests
a. 355 Bruce Street

Consideration of a request for a variance to construct a house (footprint 1458 Sq
feet) 18' into the Critical Habitat Zone setback and 3' into the front setback.
Property is described as 355 Bruce Street, Block 57, Lot 1, Unit 5, St. George
Island, Franklin County, Florida. Request submitted by Billy G. Blackburn,
Applicant. Board recommended denial of request
BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

b. 219 West Gorrie Drive
Consideration of a request for a variance to construct a 15’ x 50’ Storage Building
5.5 feet into the 10-foot left and right-side setbacks. Property is described as 219

Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8Page 8



West Gorrie, West Block 9, Lot 11, Unit 1, St. George Island, Franklin County,
Florida. Request submitted by Calvin Dunn, agent for Gary Rhinehart, applicant.
Board recommended approval of request
BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

16. Critical Shoreline Applications
a. 1490 Alligator Drive

Consideration of a request to construct a 350'x4' Single Family Dock with a 26'x6'
Terminius Platform and a 40'x14' Covered Boat Lift. Property is described as Block
L, Unit 2, Lot 4 Penn Point, Alligator Point, Franklin County, Florida. Request
submitted by Garlick Environmental Associates, Agent for Jay Briland, applicant.
Proposed request will be contingent upon State and Federal Permits. Board
recommended approval contingent upon State and Federal Permits
BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

17. Re-Zoning & Land Use Change Applications
a. 780 Hickory Hammock Road

Consideration of a request for Public Hearing to re-zone a 38.54 acre parcel lying
in Section 25, Township 6 South, Range 4 West, property address described as
780 Hickory Hammock Road, Carrabelle, Franklin County, Florida from A-2
Forestry Agriculture to R-6 Rural Residenital District. Request submitted by Wanda
Rose, agent for Al Byrne and Mary Lynn Mathre, applicants. Board
recommended approval of request
BOARD ACTION: Approve, Table, or Deny

RFP/RFQ/Bid Opening

18. Request for Qualifications - Architect for Fort Coombs Armory
The Franklin County Board of County Commissioners is seeking architectural services
relating to the renovation of the Fort Coombs Armory and Convention Center, 66 4th
Street, Apalachicola, Florida. Franklin County is interested in hiring an individual or firm
to design and oversee the renovations to the building, which will include completing the
design and installation of a fire sprinkler system. The architect should have experience
in renovating historic buildings. The architect shall be licensed to practice in the State of
Florida.

19. Notice to Receive Sealed Bids - CR 370/Alligator Drive Multi-Use Path Phase I
The Franklin County Board of County Commissioners will receive sealed bids from any
qualified person, company or corporation interested in constructing:
CR 370/ALLIGATOR DRIVE MULTI-USE PATH PHASE 1
Project is located in Franklin County, Florida and consists of approximately 1 mile of 10’
multi-use path construction on CR 370/Alligator Drive at Alligator Point, Florida

County Staff & Attorney Reports

Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9Page 9



20. Fiscal Manager/Grants Coordinator – Erin Griffith
Action Items
a. BOARD ACTION: Approval of Airport Manager Job Description
At the June 1st, 2021 meeting, upon news of the resignation of Jason Puckett the BOCC
appointed Mr. Ted Mosteller as the interim Airport Manager through September 30th to
give staff time to develop an accurate job description for the contract position. The
proposed job description is attached. The amount available for a contractual agreement
for airport manager services will be $30,000 and as this will be for professional services,
the advertisement will be a request for qualifications. Once proposals are submitted by
interested parties and opened at a public meeting, the Board will then release the
proposals to a review committee which will rank the proposers based upon
qualifications and upon confirmation by the BOCC, staff will then proceed with
negotiations with the highest ranked proposer.
Board action to approve the attached Job Description and authorize staff to
proceed with advertising the request for qualifications.
b. BOARD ACTION: 1St & Final Change Order, SGI Restrooms Project
This is the first and final change order for the SGI Restrooms Project for Storm
Construction. The change order entails a $2,500 reduction in the total cost of the project
relative to the duct work being galvanized in lieu of plastic with the contractor providing
an extended warranty concession of ten years and a change in the date for substantial
completion from March 18, 2021 to April 20, 2021 due to delays in materials. All items
that were on the architect’s final inspection punch list have been completed and
resolved. Once this change order is approved, the final pay request with the project
retainage can be processed and released to the contractor.
Board action to approve the attached first and final change order for the SGI
Restrooms Project.
c. BOARD ACTION: Construction Notice of award, FEMA C30 East and West Washouts
Project
Pigott Asphalt and Sitework, LLC was the lowest, responsive bidder for the FEMA C30
East and West Washouts Project with their bid of $816,218.34. The original project cost
estimate for this project was $387,336.27. Franklin County requested a project
amendment with the Bureau of Recovery as the total project cost was over two times
the original cost estimate developed by FEMA. The Bureau of Recovery did not see any
problem with proceeding with the project award so long as the project is completed as
written and the county followed all bid policies and procedures.
Board action to approve and authorize chairman to sign the attached Notice
of Award for Pigott Construction.
d. BOARD ACTION: FEMA C30A East Gulf Avenue Washouts Project Dewberry Task Order
Hurricane Michael damaged approximately 480’ of existing rip rap and undermined
sections of C30 Gulf Avenue going east out of Carrabelle. The FEMA estimated cost to
repair is $109,814.59 and the cost for hazard mitigation providing additional rip rap,
rock lining, slope protection and filter fabric is estimated at $108,165.00. This is the last

Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10Page 10



outstanding large project remaining in the que for Hurricane Michael Repairs.
Dewberry’s cost proposal of $36,220.00 for the survey, engineering design,
bidding/contract award and CEI is within the FEMA cost curve for this type of
construction project.
Board action to approve and authorize the chairman to sign Dewberry Task
Order #9 for the C30A East Gulf Avenue Washouts Project.
e. BOARD ACTION: Approval of Franklin County Tourist Development Council Museum
Projects Grant Application and budget for 2021/2022.
At the August 5th, 2021 meeting of the Tourist Development Council, a DRAFT grant
application and preliminary budget was approved for a $100,000 Museum Projects
Grant Program for fiscal year 21/22. Florida Statute 125 states that: TDC sales tax
proceeds may be used to: acquire, construct, extend, enlarge, remodel, repair, improve,
maintain, operate, or promote one or more: c. aquariums or museums that are publicly
owned or operated by non-for-profit organizations and open to the public, within the
boundaries of the county or sub county special taxing district in which the tax is levied.
This special grants program will assist museums with large capital improvements and
extraordinary repairs which will attract and promote tourism while preserving the
heritage of the community. Applicants must meet all eligibility requirements and the
maximum award per approved project will be up to $25,000 in 21/22.
Board action to approve the attached draft application for the Tourist
Development Council Museum Projects Grant Application and proposed
project budget for 21/22.
f. BOARD ACTION: 1st & Final Change Order, C30A Resurfacing Project
Attached is the 1st and final change order to close out the CR 30A resurfacing project
from the Gulf County line to Thirteen Mile Road. This adds $3,217.00 to the construction
costs. The $3,217 change order has already been reviewed and approved by the Florida
Department of Transportation and staff recommends approval by the Board.
BOARD ACTION: Approval and authorization for the chairman to sign the 1st
and final change order in the amount of $3,217 to Roberts and Roberts for the
CR30A Resurfacing Project.
g. BOARD ACTION: Approval of County Letter Introducing Vibration Monitoring 
As part of the permit specifications for the Hurricane Michael repairs of Alligator Drive,
the contractor was required to have a vibration monitoring plan in place. To comply
with the permit, the monitoring plan as developed by contractor Anderson Columbia
includes the placement of vibration monitoring devices on adjacent properties. It is in
the best interest of the county to assist Anderson Columbia to ensure that the project
continues to move forward on schedule and to keep homeowners well-informed. There
are approximately 17 homeowners who will receive the attached letter of introduction
from the County with subject correspondence from Anderson Columbia in regard to the
vibration monitoring. Anderson Columbia is requesting authorization from homeowners
for the placement of the monitoring devices. A homeowner can allow entry to their
property (it is not necessary to go inside homes) or refuse, however, the vibration
monitoring plan was put in place to ensure that if a home was damaged by vibration,

Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11Page 11



the monitoring device would store that information and would register/document when
the strong vibration occurred. This device also provides feedback to the contractor – if
vibrations are registering too high, they can then slow the pile driving.
BOARD ACTION: Approval of DRAFT letter from Franklin County notifying
homeowners within the construction zone of the Vibration Monitoring Plan for
the Alligator Drive Project.
Information Item
h. BOARD INFORMATION: Evergreen Pay and Classification Plan Update
The pay and classification plan is in the review stage at this time. Dr. Jeff Ling with
Evergreen Solutions will be at your next meeting on September 7th to present the
report.

21. County Coordinator – Michael Morón
Action Items 
a. Armory Reopening: At your last meeting the Board directed me to contact the State
Fire Marshall office and ask if the County could reopen the Armory prior to the
installation of the fire sprinkler system. I spoke to Mr. Paul Dyer, District Chief, and his
preference is for the County to proceed with the installation of the fire sprinkler system
prior to opening the Armory, however, if the County decides to open the Armory prior to
the fire sprinkler installation, occupancy will be limited to 50 people with a fire watch on
duty. With the opening of the Requests for Qualifications for Architectural Services for
the Armory this morning, if the Board decides not to open the Armory until after the fire
sprinkler installed, authorizing bids for painting the inside and refinishing the floors of
the Armory should be a consideration. The painting and floor refinishing projects would
be coordinated with the fire sprinkler installation project to avoid any scheduling or
construction conflicts. Board discussion and direction.
b. Armory Management transfer to TDC: In 2019 the Board discusses transferring the
management and rental of the Fort Coombs Armory from your Administrative Office to
TDC Administration. Mr. Solomon, TDC Administrator, explained that in an effort to
promote the Armory, a separate webpage for the Armory with pictures of past events, a
portal to pay for Armory rentals online, along with other projects would be done. Not too
long after that discussion, the Armory was closed due to COVID-19 and continued to
stay closed until the fire sprinkler system was installed. Is the Board ready to move
forward with the transfer of Armory management, promotion, and rental responsibilities
to the TDC? Guidance from the County’s auditor and attorney may be needed if the
Board decides to proceed. Board discussion and direction. 
c. Lanark Village Fire Department Update: At your last meeting the Board discussion
issues regarding the St. James-Lanark Village Volunteer Fire department and possible
options to provide temporary fire department coverage of that district in case of a fire.
Not too long after the Board meeting, Commissioner Boldt attended a meeting, hosted
by the St. James-Lanark Village Fire Department Board of Directors, to discuss the
current issues facing the Fire Department. Commissioner Boldt stated that the meeting
went well and besides the Fire Chief there are eight (8) volunteer firefighters.

Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12Page 12



Commissioner Boldt expressed great confidence in the Board of Directors overseeing an
effective volunteer fire department. Commissioner Boldt will comment further on the
meeting and the volunteer fire department. Board discussion and direction relating
to the St. James-Lanark Village Fire Department.
d. State Fire Marshal: As directed by the Board, I contacted the State’s Volunteer Fire
Coordinator, Mr. Charlie Frank to discuss the possibility of representative from the Fire
Marshal’s office attending a Board meeting to provide any assistance or insight with the
volunteer fire departments located in the County. Mr. Frank stated that if the BOCC
sends an official request signed by the Chairman, he and other State Fire Marshal staff
would appear before the Board to offer any assistance and guidance with the volunteer
fire departments. Scheduling a workshop, outside of a regular meeting, would probably
be more effective and productive. Board discussion and direction.
e. SHIP Projects Inspections: Some time back, the Board assigned the responsibility of
SHIP project final inspections to Mr. Steve Paterson who was, at that time, the County’s
Building Inspector. Since then, Mr. Paterson has been promoted to the Building Official
is responsible for both jobs as the Building Inspector position is still vacant. With that
stated, Mr. Paterson asked if there was a possibility of relieving him of that
responsibility. I contacted Ms. Angela Webster of Community Action Agency to find out
who they were using for their home rehab program inspections as their projects are
similar to the SHIP projects. Community Action uses Mr. Terry Mulch the Weatherization
Program Manager for Capital Area Community Action Agency. Weatherization oversees
eight counties and provide services that includes client retention and maintenance,
contractor acquisition and oversight, pre, post and quality control assessments for all
homes that they serve. Mr. Jerome Hamlet serves as the program’s Field Coordinator
and handles all direct client relations and job scheduling. The inspectors would do a
midpoint inspection for $375 and a final inspection for $275. Those fees would be
included as part of the final project cost. Mr. Michael McWilliams will continue to be
responsible for the initial work write-up with a new rate of $300 per project, also
included in the final project cost. Board action to transfer the SHIP program
project inspections from Mr. Paterson to Mr. Mulch of the Weatherization
Program with the rates stated above, including the new rate for Mr.
McWilliams.
f. Airport Drone Promotional Video: At your July 6, 2021, meeting I informed the Board
that Opportunity Florida (OF) offered to create an overhead drone video of the airport
for promotional economic opportunities use at no charge to the County, a benefit of
being a dues-paying member. This was an idea was brought to light by Duke Energy to
OF. I’ve forwarded you a Dropbox link of similar videos made of the Highway 79 Corridor
in Holmes County and the Highway 77 Corridor in Washington County. Once created, a
link to this tool could be added to the County’s website. The Board wanted to give
Commissioner Ward, your Opportunity Florida appointee, the opportunity to meet with
Mr. Roy Baker (OF) and his staff to discuss this offer further. Commissioner Ward may
have additional comments. If approved, I will coordinate this project with Mr. Mosteller
and the FBO. Board action to authorize Opportunity Florida to create this video

Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13Page 13



of the Apalachicola Airport.
g. OF Letter of Support: Opportunity Florida is requesting the Chairman’s signature on a
letter of support. This letter states that Franklin County will continue its membership
with and continue to support Opportunity Florida. Board action to authorize the
Chairman’s signature on the Opportunity Florida letter of support. 
h. Weems CDBG Funding: Recently, Michael Langton of Langton and Associates
contacted staff about the possibility of applying for Hurricane Michael CDBG funding.
After meeting with Michael, Melissa, and Erin to discuss possible projects, we agreed
that a new generator for the hospital and West Clinic along with upgrading the windows
in both buildings would be an application with a very good chance being funded as it
serves the entire County. Approval of CDBG projects are based on income, which makes
it difficult to submit applications that serve specific geographical locations in the
County. Michael and Melissa have been in conversation with Mr. David Walker (Weems
CEO) and he supports this application, which is due by September 17th. There is a
$5000 application fee to Langton and Associates that will be paid by Weems. Board
action to authorize Weems to engage Langton and Associates to complete the
Hurricane Michael CDBG application for replacing the windows and purchasing
generators for the hospital and clinic buildings. 
i. AP Beach Restoration: Last week staff was notified by the Florida Department of
Environmental Protection Beach Management division that the State would fund the
entire $200,000 for design and permitting phase of the Alligator Point beach restoration
project, therefore eliminating the need for the $100,000 match. Construction is
scheduled for 2023. Mr. Michael Dombrowski is available for questions. Board action
to authorize the Chairman’s signature on the $200,000 Department of
Environmental Protection Standard Grant Agreement for the design and
permitting phase of the Alligator Point beach restoration project.
j. CSGC Agreement: CareerSource Gulf Coast submitted their 2021-2022 budget for your
review and approval. State law requires that this item be approved by their respective
county commissioners in the workforce are that they serve annually. Mrs. Kim Bodine is
available to answer any questions you may have. Board action to approve the
CareerSource Gulf Coast 2021-2022 budget.
k. COVID Sick Leave – At your January 19th meeting the Board agreed to provide an
equivalent benefit equal to the unused remainder of the Federal FFCRA emergency paid
sick leave for employees that had not used all of the provided two weeks’ time if an
employee was unable to work, including able to telework, because the employee : 1.
was subject to a Federal, State or local quarantine or isolation order related to COVID-19
or 2. had been advised by a health care provider to self-quarantine related to COVID-19
or 3. was experiencing COVID-19 symptoms and was seeking a medical diagnosis.
Employees would still need to complete the Emergency Paid Sick Leave Request Form
for eligible reasons 1-3 above to utilize this leave. The Federal requirement to do this
expired on December 31, 2020, but the Board extended this leave to March 31, 2021. I
bring this item to you for consideration because several the Road and Bridge
Department employees have tested positive for COVID-19 and approached Mr. Howard

Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14Page 14



Nabors, Superintendent, about access to their unused emergency paid sick leave. I have
discussed this with Mrs. Maxwell, Clerk of Courts, and she is sure that her Finance staff
can run a report to determine which employees have available emergency paid sick
leave, what I didn’t discuss with Mrs. Maxwell is the potential cost for paying this leave.
How would the Board like to proceed on this matter? Board discussion and direction.
l. Eastpoint Building Removal Update: A few months ago, Mr. Rex Pennycuff appeared
before this Board to discuss the Eastpoint Civic Association’s mission to clean-up the
Eastpoint waterfront area. Mr. Pennycuff stated that he was in contact with Attorney
John Riedel who represented owners of property around the Eastpoint waterfront area
that had damaged buildings that the Association would like demolished and removed.
As a point of clarification, Attorney Riedel works for Chambers Bank, however, Attorney
Riedel states that the property isn’t owned by Chambers Bank, but a separate entity
made up of the bank’s stockholders. Mr. Pennycuff asked the Board to consider waiving
some of the tipping fees for debris that may come over the landfill scales as an
incentive to encourage the property owners to demolish the buildings. As part of that
discussion the Board suggested that the property owners contact one of the local
contractors that would be interested in crushing and reusing some of concrete,
reducing the amount of building debris that would be deposited in the landfill. I
forwarded this information to Attorney Riedel and in his response, he stated, “It is the
owners hope that a resolution can be reached in partnership with the County to make
the appearance and expenses associated with this property more tenable for both
parties.” Is the Board of the same mind that once the property owner has an
approximate amount of tonnage that will be deposited in the County’s landfill, there
might be some waiver considerations? Board discussion and direction. 
m. FWC Meeting: On Friday, August 13th, Commissioner Boldt and I met with Billy
Sermon and BJ Jamison at the FWC Carrabelle Station to discuss the status of the Bay
closure for oyster harvesting. Commissioner Boldt explained that he wanted FWC, in
coordination with other agencies, to provide a status update on the progress of all
studies relating to the Bay and oyster harvesting to the Board. He suggested that all
agencies and partners involved in the Bay research, including scientist, meet in
roundtable fashion and FWC takes on the role of facilitator. During this roundtable
meeting, four key points would be agreed to that would be presented to the Board and
public, perhaps at a BOCC workshop, in very plain language for all to understand. Since
these agencies and partners do not fall under the jurisdiction of FWC, letters inviting
them to participate and attend the roundtable should come from the BOCC.
Commissioner Boldt may have additional comments on this item. Board discussion
and direction.
Informational Items
n. $1000 Pandemic Bonus: Sheriff Smith informed me that he was contacted by some
volunteer firefighters wondering if they would receive the $1000 Pandemic Bonus
airmarked for first responders approved by Governor DeSantis. I contacted the Florida
Department of Economic Opportunity who is the responsible State agency for this
program and they sent documentation that states "Employees who are employed on an

Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15Page 15



hourly-rate basis, who are considered auxiliary, or who work on a volunteer basis are
not eligible for this payment, regardless of how many hours per week they may
work.” I forwarded that information to the Sheriff.
o. USDA approval of RBDG to Eastpoint: USDA notified the County that the $71,500
Rural Business Opportunity Grant for Eastpoint Highway 98 Waterfront and Business
Corridor Feasibility Study has been approved and the appropriate funds have been
obligated.
p. Coastal Clean-Up Day: There will be a Franklin County Coastal Clean-Up Day on
Saturday, September 18, 2021, from 8:30 – 11:30 a.m. A list of sign-up locations
throughout the County are on the flyer (attached). The flyer also contains a contact
number and email for additional information.

22. County Attorney – Michael Shuler

Commissioners' Comments & Adjournment

23. Commissioners’ Comments
24. Adjournment

In accordance with Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes, any person who wishes to appeal
a decision made by the Franklin County Board of County Commissioners, with respect to
any matter considered at the meeting, must have a record of the proceedings. He or
she may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made.

Contact: Franklin Co. Board of County (michael@franklincountyflorida.com (850) 653-9783 x 155) |
Agenda published on 08/19/2021 at 3:13 PM

Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16Page 16



August 17, 2021
Franklin County Road Department

Detail of Work Performed and Material Hauled by District
Detail from 7/28/2021 ‐ 8/11/2021

District 1

Work Performed:  Date Road

Graded Road(s) Bradford Street7/28/2021

Box drag Quinn Street7/28/2021

Box drag Bledsoe Street7/28/2021

Box drag W 12th Street7/28/2021

Box drag Howell Street7/28/2021

Box drag E 1st Street7/28/2021

Box drag E 2nd Street7/28/2021

Box drag Gunn Street7/28/2021

Box drag E 4th Street7/28/2021

Cleaned ditches, Cut bushes back Twin Lakes Road7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) E Sawyer Street7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) W Sawyer Street7/28/2021

Box drag Palm Street7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) Brown Street7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) Wing Street7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) Porter Street7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) W Bay Shore Drive7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) Gibson Street7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) Randolph Street7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) Land Street7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) Buck Street, St. George Island7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) Patton Drive7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) Bruce Street7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) McCloud Street7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) Pruett Road7/28/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Patton Street7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) Nedley Street7/28/2021

Cleaned out culverts Twin Lakes Road7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) W Pine Avenue7/28/2021

Box drag Akel Street7/28/2021

Sign Maintenance Bike Path (St. George Island)7/28/2021

Sign Maintenance W Gulf Beach Drive7/28/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) E 3rd Street7/28/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 1st Street7/28/2021

Cleaned out culverts Twin Lakes Road7/28/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W Bay Shore Drive7/28/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 1st Street7/28/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) E 3rd Street7/28/2021

Sign Maintenance Bike Path (St. George Island)7/28/2021

Sign Maintenance W Gulf Beach Drive7/28/2021

Box drag W 5th Street7/28/2021

Box drag W 9th Street7/28/2021

Box drag Marks Street7/28/2021

Box drag W 10th Street7/28/2021

Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17Page 17



District 1

Work Performed:  Date Road

Litter Pickup Carroll Street7/28/2021

Box drag W 6th Street7/28/2021

Box drag W 8th Street7/28/2021

Box drag W 4th Street7/28/2021

Box drag W 3rd Street7/28/2021

Litter Pickup N Bay Shore Drive7/28/2021

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Patton Drive7/28/2021

Litter Pickup Smith Street7/28/2021

Litter Pickup Apple Way Street7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) E 7th Street7/29/2021

Graded Road(s) E 6th Street7/29/2021

Graded Road(s) E 8th Street7/29/2021

Graded Road(s) E Pine Avenue7/29/2021

Graded Road(s) E 11th Street7/29/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 9th Street7/29/2021

Box drag Bell Street7/29/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 3rd Street7/29/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 10th Street7/29/2021

Box drag E 7th Street7/29/2021

Box drag Baine Street7/29/2021

Box drag E Bay Shore Drive7/29/2021

Box drag E 8th Street7/29/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way E Gulf Beach Drive7/29/2021

Box drag E 10th Street7/29/2021

Box drag Brinkley Street7/29/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way E Pine Avenue7/29/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 8th Street7/29/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 5th Street7/29/2021

Box drag E 9th Street7/29/2021

Sign Maintenance Bike Path (St. George Island)7/29/2021

Sign Maintenance Eastpoint Library7/29/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 8th Street7/29/2021

Sign Maintenance Twin Lakes Road7/29/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 7th Street7/29/2021

Sign Maintenance E Gulf Beach Drive7/29/2021

Sign Maintenance Eastpoint Library7/29/2021

Sign Maintenance Twin Lakes Road7/29/2021

Sign Maintenance Bike Path (St. George Island)7/29/2021

Shoulder Work Patton Street7/29/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 7th Street7/29/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 3rd Street7/29/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 9th Street7/29/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 10th Street7/29/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Patton Street7/29/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 5th Street7/29/2021

Sign Maintenance W Gulf Beach Drive7/29/2021

Sign Maintenance Old Ferry Dock Road7/29/2021

Litter Pickup, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts E Gulf Beach Drive7/30/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Twin Lakes Road8/2/2021

Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18Page 18



District 1

Work Performed:  Date Road

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 11th Street8/2/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 10th Street8/2/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Twin Lakes Road8/2/2021

Sign Maintenance E Gulf Beach Drive8/2/2021

Sign Maintenance Bike Path (St. George Island)8/2/2021

Shoulder Work Twin Lakes Road8/2/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 10th Street8/2/2021

Sign Maintenance E Gulf Beach Drive8/2/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) W 11th Street8/2/2021

Sign Maintenance Bike Path (St. George Island)8/2/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way School Road8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Tip Tucker Road8/9/2021

0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Cold Mix, Asphalt W 1st Street7/28/2021 2 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt E 3rd Street7/28/2021 2 0

Cold Mix, Asphalt TOTAL 4 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Howell Street7/28/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Randolph Street7/28/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Wing Street7/28/2021 9 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock McCloud Street7/28/2021 9 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Porter Street7/28/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Bradford Street7/28/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock E Bay Shore Drive7/29/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 108 0

Milled Asphalt W 9th Street7/29/2021 1 0

Milled Asphalt W 10th Street7/29/2021 1 0

Milled Asphalt E 7th Street7/29/2021 9 0

Milled Asphalt E 8th Street7/29/2021 9 0

Milled Asphalt Patton Drive Parking Lot (Eastpoint)7/29/2021 9 0

Milled Asphalt W 5th Street7/29/2021 1 0

Milled Asphalt W 7th Street7/29/2021 1 0

Milled Asphalt W 3rd Street7/29/2021 1 0

Milled Asphalt W 8th Street7/29/2021 1 0

Milled Asphalt W 11th Street8/2/2021 2 0

Milled Asphalt Twin Lakes Road8/2/2021 4 0

Milled Asphalt W 10th Street8/2/2021 2 0

Milled Asphalt TOTAL 41 0

District 2

Work Performed:  Date Road

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Florida Avenue (East)7/28/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Palmetto Terrace7/28/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Oleander Terrace7/28/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Franklin Street7/28/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Hinton Street7/28/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Infeild Drive (Bluewayer Bay BLVD)7/28/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Titi Street7/28/2021

Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19Page 19



District 2

Work Performed:  Date Road

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Elder Street7/28/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way McIntyre Road7/28/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Crooked River Road7/28/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Putnal Street7/28/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Rio Vista Drive7/29/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way McIntyre Road7/29/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Alligator Drive8/2/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup Alligator Drive8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Tom Roberts Road8/3/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup Alligator Drive8/3/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Alan Lane8/3/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup Alligator Drive8/3/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup CR 370 (Alligator Drive)8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Magnolia Street8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way George Vause Road8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Harry Morrison Island Road8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Peninsula Street (circle)8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Alan Lane8/3/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup Alan Lane8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Maple Street8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Pine Street8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Sun N Sands Blvd8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Surf Drive8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Mariner Circle8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Alligator Drive8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts

Gulf Shore BLVD8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Angus Morrison 8/3/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Alligator Drive8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Lakeview Drive8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Gulf Shore BLVD8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Fernway Road8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Tarpon Street8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Bay Front Drive8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Sea Shell Avenue8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

CR 370 (Alligator Drive)8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Dunes Boulevard8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Bald Point Road8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Alligator Drive8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Bald Point Road8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Fiesta Drive8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Carnival Lane8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Donax Place8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Carousel Terrace8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Alligator Drive8/4/2021

Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20Page 20



District 2

Work Performed:  Date Road

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Donax Place8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Sea Shell Avenue8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

CR 370 (Alligator Drive)8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Marlin Street8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bald Point Road8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Cobia Street8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Trout Street8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Kingfish Street8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bass Street8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Mardi Gras Way8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Sailfish Street8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Carousel Lane8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Mardi Gras Way8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bald Point Road8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Carnival Lane8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Fiesta Drive8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Grouper Street8/4/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Chip Morrison Road8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Alligator Drive8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass along 
shoulders of road on county right of way

Bay Front Drive8/4/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Carl King Avenue8/5/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Newman Drive8/5/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts CR 370 (Alligator Drive)8/5/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Bald Point Road8/5/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Harbor Circle8/5/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Oak Street (Louisiana Ave/Pinewood Ave)8/5/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Harbor Circle8/5/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Alligator Drive8/5/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Carl King Avenue8/5/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Newman Drive8/5/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Bald Point Road8/5/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Parker Avenue8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Indiana Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Kansas Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Florida Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Oak Street (Louisiana Ave/Pinewood Ave)8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Delaware Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Jubiliee Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Spring Drive8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Carl King Avenue8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Illinois Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts

Carl King Avenue8/9/2021

Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21Page 21



District 2

Work Performed:  Date Road

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts

Putnal Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Idaho Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Newman Drive8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts

Spring Drive8/9/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Putnal Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts

Oleander Terrace8/9/2021

Cut grass in ditches US HWY 98 (Lanark)8/9/2021

Cut bushes back, Trim Trees Carl King Avenue8/9/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Putnal Street8/9/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches US HWY 98 (Lanark)8/9/2021

Cut bushes back, Trim Trees Newman Drive8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way East Pine Street (Lanark)8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Heffernan Drive8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way W Pine Street (Lanark)8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Holland Avenue8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Collins Avenue8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Carlton Avenue8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Warren Avenue8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Colorado Street8/10/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Connecticut Street8/10/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way California Street8/10/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Maryland Avenue8/10/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Massachusetts Avenue8/10/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Arizona Street8/10/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Idaho Street8/10/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Alabama Street8/10/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Kentucky Ave8/10/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Carolina Street8/10/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Oak Street (Louisiana Ave/Pinewood Ave)8/10/2021

Graded Road(s) Jeff Sanders Road8/11/2021

0

Material HAUL  From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Litter Alan Lane8/3/2021 0.5 0

Litter Alligator Drive8/3/2021 0.5 0

Litter TOTAL 1 0

Milled Asphalt CR678/2/2021 54 0

Milled Asphalt CR678/2/2021 18 0

Milled Asphalt TOTAL 72 0

Trees Carl King Avenue8/9/2021 9 0

Trees TOTAL 9 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Jeff Sanders Road8/11/2021 54 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Jeff Sanders Road8/11/2021 36 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 90 0

Sand Jeff Sanders Road8/11/2021 54 0

Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22Page 22



District 2

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Sand Jeff Sanders Road8/11/2021 144 0

Sand TOTAL 198 0

District 3

Work Performed:  Date Road

Pot hole Repair (Fill), Cut Trees down and removed Library (Apalachicola New 2017) (City of Apalachicola)7/28/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill), Cut Trees down and removed Library (Apalachicola New 2017) (City of Apalachicola)7/28/2021

0

Material HAUL From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Trees Library (Apalachicola New 2017) (City of Apalachicola)7/28/2021 9 0

Trees TOTAL 9 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Library (Apalachicola New 2017) (City of Apalachicola)7/28/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 18 0

District 4

Work Performed:  Date Road

Sign Maintenance Courthouse (Apalachicola)7/28/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Apalachee Street7/28/2021

Sign Maintenance Courthouse (Apalachicola)7/28/2021

Graded Road(s) Teat Road8/2/2021

Graded Road(s) 10 Mile8/2/2021

Graded Road(s) 8 Mile8/2/2021

Graded Road(s) 13 Mile8/2/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Apalachee Street8/9/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Apalachee Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts

Apalachee Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Emergency Management (Apalachicola)8/10/2021

Cut grass in ditches, Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Bayview Drive8/10/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Cut grass in ditches Bayview Drive8/10/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts

Bayview Drive8/10/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts Bayview Drive8/10/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Pal Rivers Road8/11/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bluff Road8/11/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way, Weed Eat 
& Cut Grass around signs & Culverts

Bluff Road8/11/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup Bluff Road8/11/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bike Path (Apalachicola)8/11/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Bluff Road8/11/2021

Weed Eat & Cut Grass around signs & Culverts, Litter Pickup Bluff Road8/11/2021

0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Black Dirt 13 Mile8/2/2021 36 0

Black Dirt TOTAL 36 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Teat Road8/2/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 18 0

District 5

Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23Page 23



District 5

Work Performed:  Date Road

Graded Road(s) Cook Street7/28/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Otterslide Road8/2/2021

Pot hole Repair (Fill) Otterslide Road8/2/2021

Shoulder Work Otterslide Road8/2/2021

Flagged Brick Yard Road (Forestry Road #129)8/4/2021

Dig out ditches, Cut grass in ditches, Cleaned ditches Brick Yard Road (Forestry Road #129)8/4/2021

Cleaned ditches, Dig out ditches, Cut bushes back Brick Yard Road (Forestry Road #129)8/5/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Michael Way8/9/2021

Graded Road(s) Wright Lake Road (Forestry Road #101)8/9/2021

Graded Road(s) Brick Yard Road (Forestry Road #129)8/9/2021

Graded Road(s) Hickory Landing Road (Forestry Road #101‐B)8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Teresa Avenue8/9/2021

Graded Road(s) Bloody Bluff Road8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Wylonda Avenue8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way CC Land8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way 7th Street8/9/2021

Box drag Jeffie Tucker Road8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way 10th Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way 4th Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Otterslide Road8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Garrett Lane8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Georgia Street8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way 8th Street8/9/2021

Box drag Gardners Landing Road8/9/2021

Box drag North Road8/9/2021

Cut grass along shoulders of road on county right of way Georgia Street8/10/2021

Graded Road(s) Jeffie Tucker Road8/10/2021

Graded Road(s) Chason Road8/10/2021

Graded Road(s) Sand Beach Road8/10/2021

Graded Road(s) Bloody Bluff Road8/10/2021

0

Material HAUL From: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Ditch Dirt Brick Yard Road (Forestry Road #129)8/4/2021 198 0

Ditch Dirt Brick Yard Road (Forestry Road #129)8/5/2021 216 0

Ditch Dirt CC Land8/5/2021 18 0

Ditch Dirt TOTAL 432 0

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Black Dirt Gardners Landing Road8/9/2021 18 0

Black Dirt TOTAL 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Power Line Road (Forestry Road #166)8/5/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Bloody Bluff Road8/9/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Hickory Landing Road (Forestry Road #101‐B)8/9/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Brick Yard Road (Forestry Road #129)8/9/2021 36 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Brick Yard Road (Forestry Road #129)8/9/2021 36 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Sand Beach Road8/10/2021 36 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Jeffie Tucker Road8/10/2021 18 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Bloody Bluff Road8/10/2021 18 0

Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24Page 24



District 5

Material HAUL To: Date Road TonsCubic Yards

Dirty 89 Lime Rock Sand Beach Road8/10/2021 54 0

Dirty 89 Lime Rock TOTAL 252 0

Ditch Dirt Owl Creek Road (Forestry Road #129A)8/4/2021 198 0

Ditch Dirt Power Line Road (Forestry Road #166)8/5/2021 216 0

Ditch Dirt TOTAL 414 0

Milled Asphalt Otterslide Road8/2/2021 4 0

Milled Asphalt TOTAL 4 0

Sand Bloody Bluff Road8/9/2021 36 0

Sand Sand Beach Road8/10/2021 18 0

Sand TOTAL 54 0

Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25Page 25



FRANKLIN COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF 
Solid Waste & Recycling  Animal Control  Parks & Recreation            

210 State Road 65 
Eastpoint, Florida 32328 

Tel.: 850-670-8167 
Fax: 850-670-5716 

Email: fcswd@fairpoint.net 

                                                                                                                          

      

                                                                                                        
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

DIRECTOR’S REPORT  
FOR:    The Franklin County Board of County Commissioners 
DATE   August 17, 2021 

TIME:   9:00 A.M. 
 
SUBJECT(S): 

 
 
FOR BOARD INFORMATION:  

July 27th – August 9th      
RIGHT–OF–WAY DEBRIS PICKUP 

Apalachicola Eastpoint St George Island Carrabelle Lanark Alligator Point 
      62.21 TONS 97.74 TONS 30.04 TONS      .29 TONS  -0- TONS    -0-TONS 

 

RECYCLE MATERIAL HAULED 
 Apalachicola Eastpoint St George 

Island 

Carrabelle Lanark Alligator 

Point 

St James 

Cardboard 8.75 TONS 2.74 TONS 7.77 TONS    -0-TONS   -0- TONS -0- TONS .55 TONS 

Plastic, 

Paper, Glass, 

 Aluminum 

 
-0-TONS 

 

1.10 TONS 

 

-0-TONS 

 

-0-TONS 

 

-0-TONS 

 

-0-TONS 

 

-0-TONS 

REQUESTED ACTION: None  

 
  
 

Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26Page 26



Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27Page 27



Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28Page 28



Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29Page 29



Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30Page 30



Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31Page 31



Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32Page 32



Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33Page 33



Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34Page 34



Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35Page 35



Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36Page 36



Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37Page 37



Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38Page 38



Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39Page 39



Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40Page 40



Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41Page 41



Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42Page 42



Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43Page 43



Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44Page 44



Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45Page 45



Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46Page 46



Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47Page 47



Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48Page 48



Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49Page 49



Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50Page 50



Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51Page 51



Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52Page 52



Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53Page 53



Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54Page 54



Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55Page 55



Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56Page 56



Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57Page 57



Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58Page 58



Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59Page 59



Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60Page 60



Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61Page 61



Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62Page 62



Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63Page 63



Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64Page 64



Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65Page 65



Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66Page 66



Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67Page 67



Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68Page 68



Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69Page 69



Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70Page 70



Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71Page 71



Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72Page 72



P
ag

e 
73

P
ag

e 
73

P
ag

e 
73

P
ag

e 
73

P
ag

e 
73

P
ag

e 
73

P
ag

e 
73

P
ag

e 
73

P
ag

e 
73

P
ag

e 
73

P
ag

e 
73

P
ag

e 
73



P
ag

e 
74

P
ag

e 
74

P
ag

e 
74

P
ag

e 
74

P
ag

e 
74

P
ag

e 
74

P
ag

e 
74

P
ag

e 
74

P
ag

e 
74

P
ag

e 
74

P
ag

e 
74

P
ag

e 
74



P
ag

e 
75

P
ag

e 
75

P
ag

e 
75

P
ag

e 
75

P
ag

e 
75

P
ag

e 
75

P
ag

e 
75

P
ag

e 
75

P
ag

e 
75

P
ag

e 
75

P
ag

e 
75

P
ag

e 
75



Page 76 Page 76 Page 76 Page 76 Page 76 Page 76 Page 76 Page 76 Page 76 Page 76 Page 76 Page 76



Page 77 Page 77 Page 77 Page 77 Page 77 Page 77 Page 77 Page 77 Page 77 Page 77 Page 77 Page 77



P
ag

e 
78

P
ag

e 
78

P
ag

e 
78

P
ag

e 
78

P
ag

e 
78

P
ag

e 
78

P
ag

e 
78

P
ag

e 
78

P
ag

e 
78

P
ag

e 
78

P
ag

e 
78

P
ag

e 
78



Page 79 Page 79 Page 79 Page 79 Page 79 Page 79 Page 79 Page 79 Page 79 Page 79 Page 79 Page 79



P
ag

e 
80

P
ag

e 
80

P
ag

e 
80

P
ag

e 
80

P
ag

e 
80

P
ag

e 
80

P
ag

e 
80

P
ag

e 
80

P
ag

e 
80

P
ag

e 
80

P
ag

e 
80

P
ag

e 
80



P
ag

e 
81

P
ag

e 
81

P
ag

e 
81

P
ag

e 
81

P
ag

e 
81

P
ag

e 
81

P
ag

e 
81

P
ag

e 
81

P
ag

e 
81

P
ag

e 
81

P
ag

e 
81

P
ag

e 
81



P
ag

e 
82

P
ag

e 
82

P
ag

e 
82

P
ag

e 
82

P
ag

e 
82

P
ag

e 
82

P
ag

e 
82

P
ag

e 
82

P
ag

e 
82

P
ag

e 
82

P
ag

e 
82

P
ag

e 
82



P
ag

e 
83

P
ag

e 
83

P
ag

e 
83

P
ag

e 
83

P
ag

e 
83

P
ag

e 
83

P
ag

e 
83

P
ag

e 
83

P
ag

e 
83

P
ag

e 
83

P
ag

e 
83

P
ag

e 
83



P
ag

e 
84

P
ag

e 
84

P
ag

e 
84

P
ag

e 
84

P
ag

e 
84

P
ag

e 
84

P
ag

e 
84

P
ag

e 
84

P
ag

e 
84

P
ag

e 
84

P
ag

e 
84

P
ag

e 
84



P
ag

e 
85

P
ag

e 
85

P
ag

e 
85

P
ag

e 
85

P
ag

e 
85

P
ag

e 
85

P
ag

e 
85

P
ag

e 
85

P
ag

e 
85

P
ag

e 
85

P
ag

e 
85

P
ag

e 
85



Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86Page 86



Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87Page 87



Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88Page 88



Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89Page 89



Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90Page 90



Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91Page 91



Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92Page 92



Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93Page 93



Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94Page 94



Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95Page 95



Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96Page 96



Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97Page 97



Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98Page 98



Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99Page 99



FRANKLIN COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  

REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS 

The Franklin County Board of County Commissioners is seeking architectural services relating to the 

renovation of the Fort Coombs Armory and Convention Center, 66 4th Street, Apalachicola, Florida.  

Franklin County is interested in hiring an individual or firm to design and oversee the renovations to the 

building, which will include completing the design and installation of a fire sprinkler system.  The architect 

should have experience in renovating historic buildings.  The architect shall be licensed to practice in the 

State of Florida. 

There will be a non-mandatory meeting at the Fort Coombs Armory on Wednesday, July 28, 2021, at 

10:00 a.m. to allow interested parties to examine the Fort Coombs Armory. 

More information and a complete request for qualifications package can be obtained by contacting Mark C. 

Curenton, County Planner, 34 Market Street, Suite 1, Apalachicola, Florida 32320, telephone (850) 653-

9783 x-160 or markc@franklincountyflorida.com.   

Interested parties should provide three (3) copies of a Statement of Qualifications to the Franklin County 

Clerk’s Office, 33 Market Street, Suite 203, Apalachicola, Florida 323320 by the response deadline.  All 

letters of response shall be sealed and marked on the outside of the envelope “Architect for Fort Coombs 

Armory”.  All submissions must be submitted by 4:30 p.m. on Monday, August 16, 2021.  The Franklin 

County Board of County Commissioners will open the qualifications during their regular meeting on 

Tuesday, August 17, 2021, which begins at 9:00 a.m. at their meeting room in the Courthouse Annex, 34 

Forbes Street, Apalachicola, Florida.  The Board of County Commissioners reserves the right to reject any 

or all proposals. 

 

Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100Page 100

mailto:markc@franklincountyflorida.com


FRANKLIN COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

NOTICE TO RECEIVE SEALED BIDS 

FPID #429854-2-58-01 

 
The Franklin County Board of County Commissioners will receive sealed bids from any qualified person, 

company or corporation interested in constructing: 

 

CR 370/ALLIGATOR DRIVE MULTI-USE PATH PHASE 1 

 

Project is located in Franklin County, Florida and consists of approximately 1 mile of 10’ multi-use path 

construction on CR 370/Alligator Drive at Alligator Point, Florida. 

 

Plans and specifications can be obtained by contacting Cortni Bankston, Administrative Assistant, at 

cortnib@franklincountyflorida.com or 850-653-9783 x-180.  The bid must conform to Section 287.133(3) 

Florida Statutes, on public entity crimes. 

 

This project is federally funded with assistance from the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) and 

the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA).  By submitting a bid, the company certifies that no principal 

(which includes officers, directors, or executives) is presently suspended, proposed for debarment, declared 

ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation on this transaction by any Federal Department or 

Agency. 

 

All bidders shall be FDOT qualified per Section 2-1 of the FDOT Standard Specification for Road and 

Bridge Construction, latest edition in the following classes: Grading, Flexible Paving, and Hot Plant Mix-

Bituminous Course. 

 

Completion date for this project will be 120 days from the date of the Notice to Proceed presented to the 

successful bidder. 

 

A 5% bid bond will be required from any firm submitting a proposal in excess of $150,000.  For contracts 

of $250,000 or more, a performance and payment bond for 100% of the contract amount will be required 

to be maintained and in effect throughout the life of the contract. 

 

Liquidated damages for failure to complete the project on the specified date will be set at $1,694.00 per 

day. 

 

Bids will be received until 4:30 p.m. (EDT), on Monday August 16, 2021, at the Franklin County Clerk’s 

Office, Franklin County Courthouse, 33 Market Street, Suite 203, Apalachicola, Florida 32320, and will be 

opened and read aloud on Tuesday, August 17, 2021, at the County Commission meeting beginning at 9:00 

a.m. (EDT) at 34 Forbes Street, Apalachicola, Florida.  The outside of the envelope should be marked 

“Sealed Bid – CR 370/ALLIGATOR DRIVE MULTI-USE PATH PHASE 1”. 

 

The Board of County Commissioners reserves the right to waive informalities in any bid, to accept and/or 

reject any and all bids.  If the contract is to be awarded, it will be awarded to the lowest responsive bidder.  

All bids shall remain firm for a period of sixty days after the opening. 

 

All bidders shall comply with all applicable State and local laws concerning licensing, registration and 

regulation of contractors doing business in the State of Florida. 

 

All technical questions must be addressed in writing and emailed to Cortni Bankston at 

cortnib@franklincountyflorida.com, no later than August 2, 2021. 

Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101Page 101

mailto:cortnib@franklincountyflorida.com
mailto:cortnib@franklincountyflorida.com


 

 

  RICKY D. JONES          BERT BOLDT             NOAH LOCKLEY, JR.       JOSEPH PARRISH        JESSICA V. WARD 
    DISTRICT ONE               DISTRICT TWO                  DISTRICT THREE                 DISTRICT FOUR                DISTRICT FIVE 

 

 

  

FRANKLIN COUNTY 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Airport Manager Services Summary:  
 
The Airport Manager is responsible for and manages the implementation of Franklin County 
Florida’s approved strategic, operational and financial activities of the Apalachicola 
Regional Airport (KAAF) so as to ensure its safety, financial stability, and robust aviation 
operations. KAAF has three runways over 5,200 feet with approximately 20 based aircraft 
and 6,000 operations a year. 
 
The Airport Manager is responsible for day-to-day administration, operation oversight, 
safety, maintenance, public relations, reporting, security, emergency/disaster preparedness, 
project coordination, and other duties. The Airport Manager serves subject to the 
authority of the Franklin County Board of County Commissioners and is responsible 
for ensuring that all Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) and Florida Department of 
Transportation (FDOT) regulations and sponsor assurances/certifications are 
maintained/followed, and remain in good standing. The Airport Manager is the primary 
airport contact for FDOT, FAA, and Franklin County. 

 
The Airport Manager oversees public events and programs held at the Airport. The Airport 
Manager will be required to attend public meetings to maintain good community relations 
and address concerns of residents and airport users.  Membership and attendance at 
certain civic or business association meetings is encouraged.  The Airport Manager will be 
required to respond to emergencies and weather events affecting KAAF. 

 
Essential Duties and Responsibilities 

 Develops and maintains an annual public relations plan in conjunction with the 
Airport Sponsor. Attends community meetings to respond to concerns.  Plans and 
coordinates special aviation events activities at the airport as needed.  Events 
include items such as open house to educate the community on the Airport.  

 Develops and implements a long-range strategic business plan for the Airport. 

REPLY TO:  □ 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

33 MARKET STREET, SUITE 203 

APALACHICOLA, FL 32320 

(850) 653-8861, EXT. 100 

(850) 653-4795 FAX 

REPLY TO:  □ 
PLANNING & BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

34 FORBES STREET, SUITE 1 

APALACHICOLA, FL 32320 

(850) 653-9783 

(850) 653-9799 FAX 

 

Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102Page 102



 

 

 Assists and coordinates with county staff in regards to KAAF annual operating 
budget including revenues (i.e. rent, fees, and grants) and associated expenditures 
(i.e. maintenance, insurance). 

 Prepares and manages KAAF’s annual Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) budget in 
conjunction with the Airport Sponsor, and FAA/FDOT development program.  

 Develops and executes an annual airport work plan including goals, and objectives 
with the Airport Sponsor.   

 Manages all aspects of the airport grounds and facilities to ensure the safe, efficient, 
secure and continuous operational use of airport runways, taxiways, buildings and 
other related areas. 

 Ensures weekly inspections of runways, taxiways, associated safety areas, ramps, 
NAVAIDS, and weather station.   

 Communicates airport business by written and verbal communications in 
English.  Establishes and maintains the business records for the airport, including 
general correspondence, special reports, budgets, Notices To Airmen (NOTAMS), 
project reports, grant administration and processing invoices for services rendered. 

 Oversees contractors, lessee staff, and other staff who may from time-to-time be 
assigned to work at the airport for mowing, maintenance, or other related work and 
ensures compliance with all regulations and safety protocols. 

 Plans and coordinates updates and implementation of the Airport Layout Plan (ALP) 
and Master Plan, as well as project management such as Runway/Taxiway 
development and maintenance, land acquisition, environmental studies, Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention Plan, hangar development and financial planning. 

 Monitor’s airport tenants and use of the airport to ensure that the Airport’s Minimum 
Operating Standards and Rules and Regulations are followed along with compliance 
with Federal, State and local aviation regulations. 

 Coordinates key airport matters regularly with Franklin County, FAA, FDOT, FBO 
and Airport Consultant Engineers and Planners. 

 Prepares for and oversees disaster/emergency operations at the airport as needed 
including coordination with key Franklin County staff, law enforcement, FAA, and 
FDOT. This may require off-hour calls and response. 

 Performs other duties as assigned. 

General Requirements: 
 

Education: Degree in a field related to Aviation Management, Aviation Science or 
Business or five years of equivalent experience.  

 
Experience: A minimum of 3-5 years of experience with airfield operations, applicant 
should be a current pilot and active user of airport facilities.  Franklin County desires an 
applicant to have a hands-on approach to airport management, excellent communication 
skills and the experience and desire to further the economic development of the airport. 
 

Geographic Location: Applicant should be based within 100 miles of Apalachicola 
Regional Airport, able to maintain a presence at the airport and be involved in the local 
community. 
 
 

Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103Page 103



Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104Page 104



Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105Page 105



Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106Page 106



OPERATIONS MANAGER

Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107Page 107

Branch, Matthew
Typewriter
Resolution of overruns and underruns to borrow excavation(truck measure), superpave asphalt, and miscellaneous asphalt.

Branch, Matthew
Typewriter
1,079,392.36

Branch, Matthew
Typewriter
3,217.00

Branch, Matthew
Typewriter
0.00

Branch, Matthew
Typewriter
1,079,392.36

Branch, Matthew
Typewriter
1,082,609.36

Branch, Matthew
Typewriter
Roberts and Roberts, Inc.

Branch, Matthew
Typewriter
01



P
ag

e 
10

8
P

ag
e 

10
8

P
ag

e 
10

8
P

ag
e 

10
8

P
ag

e 
10

8

CEO

08/14/2021



 

EJCDC® C‐510, Notice of Award. 
Prepared and published 2013 by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee.   

Page 1 of 1 

 

NOTICE OF AWARD 

Date of Issuance:     

Owner:   Franklin County Board of County Commissioners  Owner's Contract No.:    

Engineer:  Dewberry Engineers Inc.  Engineer's Project No.:     50112847 

Project:  C30A Washout Repair  Contract Name:   

Bidder:  Pigott Asphalt and Sitework, LLC 

Bidder’s Address: 12 Asphalt Way, Crawfordville, Fl. 32327 

TO BIDDER: 
 You are notified that Owner has accepted your Bid dated _July 6, 2021 for the above Contract, and that you 
are the Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for: 

C30A Washout Repair. 

 
The Contract Price of the awarded Contract is:  $ 816,218.34 

        3 unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement accompany this Notice of Award.  

            a set of the Drawings will be delivered separately from the other Contract Documents.  

 You must comply with the following conditions precedent within 15 days of the date of receipt of this Notice 
of Award: 
 

1.  Deliver to Owner [ 3 ]counterparts of the Agreement, fully executed by Bidder. 

2.  Deliver with the executed Agreement(s) the Contract security [e.g., performance and payment bonds] 
and  insurance  documentation  as  specified  in  the  Instructions  to  Bidders  and  General  Conditions, 
Articles 2 and 6. 

3.  Other conditions precedent (if any):  
 

 Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you in default, 
annul this Notice of Award, and declare your Bid security forfeited.   

  Within ten days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully executed 
counterpart of the Agreement, together with any additional copies of the Contract Documents as indicated in 
Paragraph 2.02 of the General Conditions. 

Owner:  Franklin County Board of County Commissioners 

  _____________________                          ____                

                 Authorized Signature 

By:  ___________________                          ______ 

Title:  Chairman, Franklin County Board of County Commissioners 
 
 
 Copy:   Engineer 

  

Page 109Page 109Page 109Page 109



 

1 

Revised 8/5/2021 

 
 
 

Franklin County Tourist Development Council 
501(c)(3) Museum Projects Grant Application 

2021-22 
 

The Franklin County Tourist Development Council has identified authorized use of Tourist 
Development Funds.  per F.S. 125.0104(5) for museums that are publicly owned and operated 
or owned and operated by not-for-profit organizations and open to the public, within the 
boundaries of the county or sub county special taxing district in which the tax is levied.  The tax 
revenues may be used to acquire, construct, extend, enlarge, remodel, repair, or improve any 
501c3 non-profit corporations and governmental organizations museum. The 501(c)(3) 
Museum Projects Grant is designed to provide financial assistance to local museums for 
repairs, additions or expansions. The TDC has identified $100,000 for this grant program subject 
to the availability of funds, and approval by the Franklin County TDC Board and the Franklin 
County BOCC.   Annual awards are reimbursable grants for up to 25% of the funds budgeted for 
the fiscal year of the grant, paid upon receipt of required documentation.  Additional funding 
may be requested and considered by the TDC Board but limited to amount budgeted for the 
fiscal year. Grant applications can be submitted at any point during the fiscal year. Projects 
receiving grant must be completed within the fiscal year of submitted application.   
 
Eligibility:  
Applicants must meet the following minimum requirements: 

 Organization must be a 501c3 non-profit corporation or governmental organization located 
and doing business in Franklin County as a museum. 

 Organizations requesting funding under this program must be identified as a museum as its 
primary mission in its corporate documents or, in the case of a governmental entity must be 
identified that its primary purpose is to operate as a museum by an ordinance or resolution.  

 Organizations requesting funding should demonstrate that their museum operation is 
recognized by one or more state or federal museum organizations. 

 Applicants must complete and submit an application requesting funds and provide all 
documents and information requested by the TDC.   

 Applicant organization must have been in operation for a minimum of two (2) years. 

 Before the grant application is presented to The TDC Board it will be reviewed to verify it 
meets the statuary requirements. 

 If grant is approved the grantee will not be eligible to apply or receive another Museum 
Project Grant for 1 fiscal year. 

 
Grant Amount - The grant award amount is based on 25% of the funds budgeted for the fiscal 
year of the grant.   This is a reimbursement grant, and will be paid upon the completion of the 

Page 110Page 110Page 110



 

2 

Revised 8/5/2021 

project.  Approved project must be complete and all documentation for reimbursement 
submitted by Sept. 15th of the fiscal year. 
 
Application Requirements -  If the project exceeds $10,000 then three (3) bids for the project 
will need to be presented with the application.   Signage must be visible stating the project is 
funded by Franklin County Tourist Development Council.  Applicants must submit the required 
application and supporting documents to the Franklin County TDC Office located at 731 
Highway 98, Eastpoint,  Florida,  32328 .  Applications can also be transmitted via email to 
grants@floridasforgottencoast.com. 
 
Application Questions: 
Applicants may request clarification regarding any provision of this application by emailing 
Deborah Davis at deb@saltyflorida.com.  

  

Page 111Page 111Page 111

mailto:grants@floridasforgottencoast.com
mailto:deb@saltyflorida.com


 

3 

Revised 8/5/2021 

 
 
 

Franklin County Tourist Development Council 
501(c)(3) Museum Projects Grant Application 

2021-22 
 
 

Section 1. Organizational Information: 
 Organization Corporate or Government Name:   
 Address: 
 Contact Person: 
 Phone Number 
 Email Address 
 FEIN #: 
 Have you previously received TDC funding for this program?  Y  N 
 
Section 2. Museum Information: 
 Name: 
 Location: 
 Hours of Operation: 
 Manager: 
 Manager email: 
 Web Site: 
 
Section 3.  Supporting Information to be Provided: 

o A brief description of the project and how it will improve in promoting tourism and     
preserving the heritage of the community, to attract tourists and improve the 
property that is open to the public. 

o Project budget and bids 
o Corporate filing or Government Resolution 
o Documentation of Participation with Accrediting or Funding organization 

 
 

       
Signature of Authorized Agent    Date   

 

Page 112Page 112Page 112



 
  

 

Page 1 of 2 

August 9, 2021  
 
Mr. Ricky Jones 
Chairman 
Franklin County Board of County Commissioners 
34 Forbes Street, Suite 1 
Apalachicola, Florida 32320 
 
Re: FEMA Funded Recovery – Task Order #9 
 C30A East - Gulf Avenue Washouts 
 
Dear Mr. Jones, 
 
Dewberry Engineers Inc. (DEI) is pleased to provide this proposal for professional services.  It is our 
understanding the County wishes DEI to assist with the survey, design, bidding and contract award and 
construction inspection of the repairs to County Road 30A East – Gulf Avenue Washout areas.  DEI will 
perform these professional services as described below for a lump sum amount of $36,220.00.   

 
A. SURVEY  

1. DEI will provide survey control throughout the project area 
2. DEI will provide topographic survey as necessary to establish grades and cross sections in severely 

damaged areas 
3. DEI will develop right-of-way within the damaged area.  Right-of-way will be developed on the 

damage side of the roadway only. 
4. DEI will locate all above and below ground utilities as necessary.  Utility locates will be based on 

field locations by utility companies. 
5. DEI will locate obstructions within the right-of-way including trees and vegetation 
6. DEI will locate the Mean High Water Line, Mean Low Water Line, Seasonal Waters Edge and 0’ 

contour. 
 
Task A Total = $ 4,500.00 

B. ENGINEERING DESIGN  

1. DEI will provide design according to the Manual of Uniform Minimum Standards for Design 
Constructive and Maintenance for Street and Highways commonly known as the “Florida Green 
Book” as well as the Franklin County Land Development Regulations. 

2. DEI will provide plan sheets and cross sections (as necessary). 
3. DEI will provide signing and marking plans in accordance with the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control 

Devices (MUTCD). 
4. DEI will provide detail sheets as required. 
5. DEI will provide permitting as necessary to meet Northwest Florida Water Management  

District (NWFWMD) exemption requirements. 
 
Task B Total = $ 18,500.00 

 

 

 
Page 113Page 113



Franklin County Task Order 
Professional Services for County Road 30A East – Gulf Avenue Washouts 
August 9, 2021 
 

 

Page 2 of 2 

C. BIDDING AND CONTRACT AWARD SERVICES  

1.  DEI will prepare contract documents and specifications necessary for bidding the project for   
 construction. 

2.  DEI will assist the County in receiving bids and provide a recommendation for award. 
 

Task C Total = $ 2,500.00 
 

D. CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION AND INSPECTION 

1. DEI will provide periodic onsite construction observation services from Notice to Proceed through   
Final Completion. 

2. DEI will assist in pre-construction meetings and progress meetings. 
3. DEI will provide site visit reports including photographs documenting DEI’s observations. 
4. DEI will approve Contractor’s monthly pay requests. 

 
Task D Total = $10,720.00 
 

TOTAL PROPOSED LUMP SUM FEE:  $36,220.00 

All terms and conditions of this Task Order shall be governed by the terms and conditions in the current 
Professional Services Agreement between Franklin County and Dewberry Engineers Inc. dated February 
14th, 2018. 

Please note the following services are excluded from this Task Order. 

1. Title searches or opinions 
2. Construction stakeout surveying 
3. As-built surveys 
4. Wetlands permitting or any other permitting beyond NWFWMD 
5. Permitting Fees 
6. Boundary Surveys 

 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact us.  We appreciate the opportunity to provide 
these services to you. 
 

Sincerely,        Approved by: 

  

       ___________________________ 
       Ricky Jones, Chairman 

Clay Kennedy      
Senior Project Manager 
Dewberry            Date: _________________ 
324 Marina Drive 
Port St Joe, FL 32456 
850-571-1213 
jkennedy@dewberry.com 

Page 114Page 114



Page 115


	Board of County Commissioners - Regular Meeting

		2021-08-18T08:12:49-0500
	Herschel A Neel


		2021-08-18T09:15:49-0400
	Matthew Branch
	I am approving this document




